






CONSENT 
AGENDA 

A 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

98th Session of the Eleventh Council 

A Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, July 18, 2023, at 6:07 p.m. by Council 
President Pro-Tern William Carrington. 

Invocation - Pastor Kathalee James 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 

Moment of Silence 

Roll Call 

Members Present- William Carrington, Kathalee James, William Parker, Jr., and Melanie Rutherford 

Mayor Greimel was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
Motion to excuse Councilman Mikal Goodman, Mike McGuinness, and Bret 

Nicholson for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson Parker and second by Councilperson 
Carrington. 

Ayes: Carrington, James, Parker, and Rutherford 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: James, Parker, Rutherford and Carrington 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness arrived at 6: 10 p.m. and assumed the chair 

Councilman Mikal Goodman arrived at 6: 11 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 
23-258 (A) Resolution to approve the consent agenda for July 18, 2023. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Parker. 

Whereas, the City Council has reviewed the consent agenda for July 18, 2023. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the consent agenda for July 18, 
2023, including July 11, 2023, City Council Minutes, Resolution to extend date for services through 
September 30, 2023 for the Art Crawl events (no change to cost), and Resolution to approve the 
amendments to the Agreements for Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Distribution between Oakland County 

1 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

and The City of Pontiac for the Healthy Communities Park and Outdoor Recreation Investment Plan 
Grant award in the amount of $500,000 for the Crystal Lake Park Revitalization Project. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-258 (B) Resolution to extend date for services through September 30, 2023, for the Art 
Crawl events. (no change to cost) Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson 
Parker. 

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City's municipal 
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 pertaining to major purchases; 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval to amend the contract with The Major 
Group, LLC by two months, expiring September 30, 2023 .; NOW, THEREFORE 
RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor Designee to execute the contract 
amendment with The Major Group, LLC. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-258 (C) Resolution to approve the amendments to the Agreements for Local Fiscal Recovery 
Fund Distribution between Oakland County and The City of Pontiac for the Healthy Communities 
Park and Outdoor Recreation Investment Plan Grant award in the amount of $500,000 for the 
Crystal Lake Park Revitalization Project. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 
Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, has been awarded $500,000 from the Oakland County Healthy Communities Park and 
Outdoor Recreation Investment Plan Grant program in support of Crystal Lake Park; and, 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac requested this funding to reclaim and revitalize Crystal Lake Park so that 
its abundant environmental, recreational, and historic resources may be enjoyed and utilized by residents; 
and, 
WHEREAS, Oakland County requires an Agreement for Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Distribution 
Between Oakland County and The City of Pontiac to be executed before they can disburse the funds; and, 
WHEREAS, the agreement was previously approved by the Pontiac City Council, but Oakland County 
requires an updated resolution to reflect amendments to the original agreement. 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Pontiac City Council hereby authorizes Mayor Tim Greimel 
to execute the amendments to the Agreement for Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Distribution Between 
Oakland County and The City of Pontiac for the Healthy Communities Park and Outdoor Recreation 
Investment Plan Grant award in the amount of $500,000 for the Crystal Lake Park Revitalization Project. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Special Presentation 
Master Plan Update Process 
Presentation Presenter: Mark Y andrick, Planning Manager 

Recognition of Elected Officials 
1. Tameka Ramsey, Chair of the Charter Revision Commission 

2 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

2. Beatrice Wright, Precinct #3 Delegate 

Agenda Address 
1. Robert Bass addressed item # 1 
2. Beatrice Wright addressed item # 1 
3. Dr. Deirdre Waterman addressed Charter and item #1 
4. Darlene Clark addressed item # 1 
5. Carlton Jones addressed item # 1 
6. Gloria Miller addressed Charter and item # 1 

Agenda Items 
City Council 
23-259 Resolution Honoring the Life and Service of Anthony Dombrowski. Moved by 
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Parker. 

Whereas, Mr. Anthony Dombrowski was a highly involved member of our Pontiac community for many 
years, serving through multiple civic organizations and frequent volunteer activities; and, 
Whereas, Mr. Dombrowski worked for decades for the City of Pontiac, retiring as the Parks and Forestry 
Supervisor; and, 
Whereas, through his decades of work, he improved the quality of life for past, present, and future 
Pontiac residents; and, 
Whereas, Mr. Dombrowski passed away on July 7, 2023, at the age of 72, which is a tragic loss for his 
family and our community; now, 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council hereby acknowledges the life and service of Mr. 
Anthony Dombrowski, and morns his passing; and further 
Resolved, the City Council extends our deepest sympathies to the family, friends, neighbors, and 
colleagues of Mr. Dombrowski. 

Ayes: McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-260 Resolution in support of Webster Community Center. Moved by Councilperson 
Carrington and second by Councilperson Rutherford. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac strives to be an exceptional place for all of our residents to live, work, 
enjoy, and thrive; and, Whereas, the redevelopment of the former Webster Elementary School, currently 
vacant and in disrepair, into a thriving community center will have a massively positive impact on the 
surrounding neighborhood and the entire City of Pontiac; and, Whereas, this project will transform the 
existing large blighted structure into an active center for residents to use for physical activity, health 
services, fresh produce, nonprofit spaces, and a hub for local entrepreneurs and community gatherings; 
and, Whereas, the former Webster Elementary School is an important historic landmark for the City of 
Pontiac as well as the nation, and in January 2022 the Pontiac City Council adopted a resolution 
supporting the addition of the Webster School to the National Register of Historic Places, which did 
successfully take place later that year; and, Whereas, the Micah 6 Community nonprofit organization has 
successfully secured the substantial resources necessary to undertake this project construction; now, 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City Council hereby formally declares the City of Pontiac's 
support for the Webster Community Center project; and further Resolved, the City submits our support 
of the project via correspondence to the Michigan Strategic Fund for their review; and further Resolved, 
we are grateful for the Michigan Strategic Fund's continued interest in this crucial project in our Pontiac 
community. 

3 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, James, and McGuinness 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 
Councilman Mikal Goodman was absent during the vote 

Grants and Philanthropy 
23-261 Resolution to approve the agreement for participation in the OCAT Project and 
Receipt of Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA) Grant Funds between Oakland County 
(Oakland County Sheriff's Office) and the City of Pontiac (Oakland County Sheriff's Office
Pontiac) Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the goal of OCA T is to reduce the number of motor vehicle thefts in each grant area by 
investigating cases that have the highest potential for reducing the demand for stolen vehicles, arresting 
individuals who are involved, and reducing false motor vehicle theft reports; and, 
WHEREAS, this Agreement will reduce the economic gain associated with motor vehicle theft by 
recovering stolen vehicles/parts/equipment and by identifying fraudulent insurance activity; and, 
WHEREAS, OCAT will submit an application to the ATP A (Auto Theft Prevention Authority) Grant 
program for reimbursement of Police Officer overtime wages through participation in OCAT; and, 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor, Tim 
Greimel, to sign onto the Agreement for Pa1ticipation in OCAT between Oakland County and City of 
Pontiac (Oakland County Sheriff's Office -Pontiac) and City of Hazel Park (Hazel Park Police Dept.) and 
City of Farmington Hills (Farmington Hills Police Dept.) and City of Detroit (Detroit Police Dept.) and 
City of Southfield (Southfield Police Dept.) 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-262 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute the Lowe's Hometowns Grant 
Program Agreement 2023. Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson 
Rutherford. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has been awarded $200,000 from the Lowe's Hometowns Grant 
Program; and, 
WHEREAS, the Lowe's Hometowns Grant Program will serve as the grant maker, and is administered by 
Points of Light; and, 
WHEREAS, the grant award will support critical improvements to the Ruth Peterson Senior Center; and, 
WHEREAS, the grant award does not have a matching requirement; and, 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement ends November 15th, 2023. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes Mayor Tim Greimel to 
execute the Lowe's Hometowns Grant Program Agreement 2023 in acceptance of the $200,000 grant 
award, and to submit and execute documents requested by Lowe's Hometowns Grant Program related to 
the grant award. 

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, and Parker 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

23-263 Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment 
for Fiscal Year 2023-24 to increase budgeted revenues in the amount of $200,000 to account 212-
000-675.000-LOWESH- Contribution from private source, and appropriations in the amount of 
$37,308 to account 212-813-818.000-LOWESH- Other Professional Services, $70,792 to account 

4 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

212-813-976.001-LOWESH- Building Additions and Improvements, and $91,900 to account 212-
813-977.008-LOWESH- Special Equipment, reflecting the Lowe's Hometowns Grant Award. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded $200,000 from the Lowe's Hometowns Grant Program; 
and, 
WHEREAS, the grant award will support kitchen and flooring renovations at the Ruth Peterson Senior 
Center; and, 
WHEREAS, the funds from the grant will increase the budgeted revenue for the current fiscal year 
2023-2024 in the amount of $200,000 for grant income, and increase the appropriations in the 
amount of $200,000, representing grant expenditures. 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish the 
proposed budget amendment for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget as requested by the Administration to 
increase budgeted revenues in the amount of $200,000 to account 212-000-675.000-LOWESH
Contribution from private source, and appropriations in the amount of $37,308 to account 212-813-
818.000-LOWESH-Other Professional Services, $70,792 to account 212-813-976.001-LOWESH -
Building Additions and Improvements, and $91,900 to account 212-813-977.008-LOWESH- Special 
Equipment 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker, and Rutherford 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

23-264 Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment 
for Fiscal Year 2023-24 to establish budget appropriations in the amount of $1,100,000 to account 
285-699-818.000-ARPHRP Other Professional Services. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and 
second by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, the City of Po11tiac was allocated $37.7 million from the State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Fund (SLFRF) under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARP A), and; 
WHEREAS, the funding provided under ARP A provides a unique opportunity for state and local 
governments to make strategic investments in long-lived assets, rebuild reserves to enhance financial 
stability, and cover temporary operating shortfalls until economic conditions and operations normalize in 
the wake ofCOVID-19, and; 
WHEREAS, the City's Executive Administration worked to build a programming budget for the use of its 
$37,700,000 in SLFRF funding that reflects the needs of the community, and; 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council unanimously approved the Executive Administration's ARPA 
Program Budget on November 101

\ 2022, allocating $3,622,000 to establish a home repair program and 
fund the administration of the program, and; 
WHEREAS, in an effort to put ARP A funds into action, and to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 on 
Pontiac residents, the City has established the Pontiac Home Repair Program (PHRP), and; 
WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council approved phase 1 of the PHRP funding on March 13 th, 2023, and; 
WHEREAS, the number of inquiries the PHRP team received far surpasses the amount of resources that 
are available under Phase 1 of the program, and; 
WHEREAS, the following budget amendment reflects Phase 2 funding for the Pontiac Home Repair 
Program and associated costs, and; 
WHEREAS, the budget amendment will increase the budgeted appropriations in the amount of 
$1,100,000, representing the Pontiac Home Repair Program expenditures. 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Clerk to publish the 
proposed budget amendment for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget to establish budget appropriations in the 
amount of $1,100,000 to account 285-699-818.000-ARPHRP Other Professional Services. 

5 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

Mayor's Office 

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, and Carrington 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

23-265 Resolution to approve an agreement with National Network for Safe Communities 
to develop and implement a Group Violence Program in the City of Pontiac for a two-year period. 
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington. 

WHEREAS, the National Network for Safe Communities presented the City of Pontiac with a proposal to 
implement the Group Violence Intervention Program for two years; and, WHEREAS, the Mayor, has 
reviewed and recommends the proposal; and WHEREAS, there is available funding through ARP A 
funds; NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the proposal from the 
National Network for Safe Communities and authorizes the Mayor to enter into a two year agreement 
with the National Network for Safe Communities for Group Violence Intervention for an amount not to 
exceed $283,952. 

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman 
No:None 
Resolution Passed 

Public Comment 
1. Carlton Jones 
2. Beatrice Wright 
3. Robert Bass 
4. Jean Matthews 
5. Darren Gordon 
6. Tameka Ramsey 
7. Darlene Clark 
8. Dennis Thompson 
9. Dr. Deirdre Waterman 
10. Gloria Miller 

Closed Session 
23-266 Resolution to proceed into closed session at 8:27 p.m. pursuant to Section S(d) of the 
Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(d) to consider the purchase or lease of real property. Moved by 
Councilperson Goodman and second by Councilperson Parker. 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to consider the purchase or lease of real property and 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Open Meetings Act Section 8(d) ofMCL 15.268 provides that a public body 
may meet in closed session to consider the purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to 
purchase or lease such real property is obtained. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council will proceed in Closed Session pursuant to 
Section 8( d) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15 .268( d) to consider the purchase or lease of real 
property. 

Ayes: Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, and Parker 
No:None 
Motion Carried 
Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford was absent during the vote 

6 



July 18, 2023, Draft 

Motion to come out of closed session at 9:54 p.m. Moved by Councilperson Parker and 
second by Councilperson Goodman. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness 
No:None 
Motion Carried 

Communications 
City Council and Mayor's Office 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 
Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford and Council President Mike McGuinness made closing comments. 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by 

Councilperson Parker. 

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James and McGuinness 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourn the meeting at 10:01 p.m. 

Garland S. Doyle 
City Clerk 

7 



#2 

ORDINANCE 



Community Development Department 
Rachel Loughrin, Director 
Rafael LeFlore, Interim Building Official 
Jack McIntyre, Code Enforcement Manager 
Deborah Younger, Economic Development Manager 
Mark Yandrick, Planning Manager 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

City Council 

Mark Yandrick, Planning Manager 

Corey Christensen, Senior Planner 

June 1, 2023, Updated July 6, 2023 

SPR 23-004 Rezoning, 31 N. Astor Rd 

Executive Summary 

42¼ 

INITDAC~ 

SPR 23-004 is a request by Red Chickweed LLC to rezone 31 N Astor from R-1 (One Family Dwelling) to R-3 
(Multiple Family Dwelling). The applicant intends to convert the vacant school into multiple family dwellings 
with a commercial space on the first floor as well as add two-story multi-family residential buildings on the 
site. There are 10 parcels in total as part of this rezoning. 

Planning Commission recommended approval, 4-0 of this zoning Map Amendment on June 7, 2023 during the 
public hearing. 

Since the Planning Commission meeting, the applicant has volunteered a condition that building approvals for 
vertical construction of any new buildings on the site will not take place until either upon the issuance of one 
or more certificate of occupancies by the City for at least a minimum of 2,600 square feet of the 
nonresidential space and a minimum of 2,700 square feet of multifamily residential space ifthe school is 
redeveloped or demolition if the building is not structurally or financially feasible. This ensures that 
development does not occur on the site with the school remaining vacant or becoming blighted. 

Overview and History 
The proposed rezoning includes 10 parcels as indicated below . The applicant intends to convert the existing 
school structure into apartments with some commercial space on the first floor. Eventually, the applicant 
intends to build more multifamily residential structures on the western portion of the property. The property 
is currently zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling which does not permit mixed use developments or multifamily 
residences. After meeting with staff, it was determined that the R-3 Multiple Family district was the least 
change necessary to permit the types of uses the applicant is proposing. 

Figure 1: Aerial of the Existing Site between Martin Luther 
King Drive (left), Astor Drive (right) and Northway Drive 
(top} 



Zoning Map Amendment: City Council 
31 N Astor St. 

Zoning Districts 

Staff Report by: Corey Christensen 
June 23, 2023 

The following map in Figure 2 shows the subject property to be rezoned, as well as surrounding districts. 

Figure 2: Existing Zoning Classifications. The subject parcels in the red box are currently zone R-1 

tC::-=l 
~\-~i ,., 
I',~(·.--

The difference between the One-Family and Multiple-Family Dwelling is the allowance for multi-family 
housing and similar uses in the R-3 district according to Table 2, Uses Permitted by District of the City's Zoning 
Code as well as mixed use development. 

Condition of Approval 
Since the Planning Commission meeting, staff had discussion with the applicant about not wanting the school 
to remain vacant while the rest of the site was under construction. While this would be formalized in a site 
plan, Planning Commission and/or staff would not much control of this in a future site plan process if it met 
the zoning conditions. 

The applicant agreed to the following condition of approval for this zoning map amendment: 
Applicant agrees to the renovation or demolition of the vacant building known as the former Longfellow 
School Facility (the "Building") prior to the commencement of any vertical construction of any new building, 
home, or other permanent structure on the rezoned Property. The Applicant shall renovate the Building if it 
is structurally and/or financially feasible. If it is not structurally or financially feasible to renovate the 
Building, the Applicant shall demolish the Building. In the event Applicant renovates the building, upon the 
issuance of one or more certificate of occupancies by the City for at least a minimum of 2,600 square feet of 
the nonresidential space and a minimum of 2,700 square feet of multifamily residential space. Additionally, 
in the event any one or more of the ten {10) vacant land parcels included in this conditional rezoning are 
removed or separated from the project site, it shall revert to its original zoning as it exists on Thursday, July 
6, 2023. 

2 



Zoning Map Amendment: City Council 
31 N Astor St. 

Staff Report by: Corey Christensen 
June 23, 2023 

The size of the former school is approximately 38,450 square feet so the commitment represents 
approximately 14% of the building will receive final certificates of occupancy before zoning and building 
permits are issued for vertical construction. Typically, portions of a development will receive a certificates of 
occupancy in phases so this represents the commitment for both multi-family and non-residential uses 
before beginning with the rest of the site. The applicant expressed a strong desire for grading and foundation 
work to be done concurrently, which is why he worded the condition as such. 

Standards of Approval 

When considering rezonings, the Planning Commission and City Council shall consider the following 
criteria. 

A. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent development 
trends in the area shall be considered. 

The Master Plan's Future Land Use map classifies the subject property as "Entrepreneurial: 
Residential, Commercial & Green." This classification is intended to allow for a wide range of uses 
and site configurations so that residents, neighbors, community groups, investors and other 
stakeholders might redevelop distressed properties. The applicant's proposed rezoning and future 
development are consistent with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan. 

B. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features with 
the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The property is not located within a floodplain or wetland. The topography of the site is level and 
there are no environmental features that would prohibit this type of use or zoning. 

C. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

Under the current designation the property is only permitted to be used as a single-family residence 
or for some institutional uses such as community centers or schools. 

D. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding uses 
and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, traffic 
impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure, and potential influence on property values. 

The R-3 zoning district permits the same uses as the R-1 district with the addition of higher density 
residential and some low intensity commercial uses such as restaurants, childcare facilities, and 
offices 

Figure 2: August 2018 Google Streetview of the Vacant School (from N. Astor Street) 

3 



Zoning Map Amendment: City Council 
31 N Astor St. 

Staff Report by: Corey Christensen 
June 23, 2023 

E. The capacity of the City's utilities and services are sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities and services are sufficient to accommodate the proposed use. The site was 
previously used as a public school and the utilities is designed to accommodate large numbers of 
people 

The City's utilities and services are sufficient to accommodate the proposed use. The site was 
previously used as a public school and the utilities is designed to accommodate large numbers of 
people. 

F. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

The site was previously used as a public school and the roadway is designed to accommodate large 
numbers of people. The property has frontage along Martine Luther King Jr Blvd. 

G. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and 
construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested zoning 
district. 

The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are sufficient for the development proposed by the 
applicant. The area of the rezoning fronts the right-of-way on three sides, to the south the property 
abuts single family residences. 

H. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate from 
the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

The applicant worked with City Staff to determine the appropriate zoning district for this property and 

4 



Zoning Map Amendment: City Council 
31 N Astor St. 

Staff Report by: Corey Christensen 
June 23, 2023 

the development being proposed. The R-3 zoning district was selected because it represents the least 
change necessary to permit the multifamily residential and commercial uses proposed by the 
applicant. 

I. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would not be appropriate to amend the list of uses permitted in the R-1 One Family district to 
include multifamily and commercial uses. 

J. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 

The requested rezoning will maintain the residential nature of the property but allow for multifamily 
style developments. The vacant elementary school sits on a parcel that is significantly larger than 
other parcels in the R-1 zoning district. Redevelopment of the site is unlikely without a rezoning. 

Planning Commission Recommendation 

Planning Commission recommended approval, 4-0, of this zoning Map Amendment on June 7, 2023 during 
the public hearing. 

Staff concurs that City Council should consider the condition of approval that the metrics (square feet) of 
certificates of occupancy for both multi-family and nonresidential uses be issued in the school building before 
vertical construction begins on any new buildings on site. 

City Council Resolution 

A resolution for Conditional Rezoning Agreement will be presented at second reading. This agreement, once 
approved, will be recorded with the property (ies). 

5 



~ ntA: ;;z 3-CJ {) i 
Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 
City of Pontiac 

Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Address: 31 N Astor St, Pontiac Ml 48342 Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 14-27-306-014 PF Number: 

Date: 5/4/2023 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

A1mlicant {Qlease Qrint or !;\!Re) 

Name Red Chickweed LLC 
Address 735 W Huron St 
City Pontiac 
State Ml 
ZIP Code 48342 
Telephone Main: I Cell:( I Fax: 

E-Mail nm@pimperneldevelopments.com 

froject and PrOl!fl!:ll! Information 

Name of Proposed Development: Longfellow School Redevelopment (name undecided: Ponllac Eastsk!e Longfellow 2.0) 

The subject property is location at 31 N Astor St on the N / S / E / W side of Martin Luther King Jr Blvd 
between Pike st and Northway St 

The property is zoned: R-1 One Family Dwelling 

Proposed Zoning District: A-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: Multifamily, Multifamily Mixed-use 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

T3N, R10E, SEC 27 HOMESTEAD PARK NO. 1 LOT 186 TO 189 INCL & E 236 FT OF LOT 10 A.P. NO 105 ADJ ON WEST. 



Property Owner Information 

Name Red Chickweed LLC 
Address 36400 Woodward Ave / 735 W Huron St 431549 / 31 n Astor St 
City Bloomfield Hills / Pontiac / Pontiac 
State Ml 
ZIP Code 48304 I 48343 / 48342 
Telephone Main: I Cell· -- --· I Fax: 

E-Mail nm@pimperneldevelopments.com / niccolo.mastromatteo@gmail.com 

Are you the _X_ Owner ___ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 
PHASE I - MULTIFAMILY MIXED-USE (nonprofit/local business center community hub) 

- 35 ( +/-) loft-style apartment rental units 

- 6 (+/-) nonprofit/local busienss center community hub spaces (kitchen, gym, auditorium, boilerhouse) 

PHASE II - MULTIFAMILY 

- 145 ( +/-) loft-style apartment rental units 

TOTAL 1&11 - 180 (+/-) loft-style apartment rental units and 6 +/· nonprofit/local business center community hub spaces 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
Redevelop longstanding vacant, underutilized, facility property in heart of Eastside Pontiac District 7 Census Tract 1423, Block Group 1 

Provide quality rental housing options at reasonable pricing to current Pontiac Citizens and employees (i.e., future citizen residents) 

Provide Clty Increased existing and new additional tax revenue. and Citizens Increased resident services, property values, jobs, levellng..-up opportunities for PCs. and Eastslde hub 

Beautify, add value to, & further revitalize already strong, solid, up-and-coming neighborhood, Increasing property values, adding jobs. sheparding & creating leveling-up opportunities 

CUnent~..,...,Jmb~beslll$Ollarprq191ty;ft:ZOO'tlganabln~lllbcJ~arlClow,c,~dly111det-;sr~plallldlll.'abpod~&:snfdlll$,~J8!1idl:nJ._,...members.lrAlllnoonl,.andmt.-~Cllul 

111/~ 
Signature of Owner 

State of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

d?f~ 
Signature of Applicant 

On this~ day of. ~ , A.D., 20 'A.?>. before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly sworn, stated he/she has read 
the foregoing application, by him/her signed, and know the contents thereof, and that the same is true of his/her own la1owledge, except as t~tters 
therein staled lo be upon information and belief and so as to those matters he/she believes ii to be true. , -~---'-"-'--"➔=--CoXJJus _______ _ 

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 

MARYCASTRO 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF Ml 

COUNlY OF OAK\.AND 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES Dec 19, 2027 
ACTING IN COUNlY OF Oo-klo.nd, 

My Commission Expires:Dec. \~ '2.,1 



N ,+, 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION !POI mu: co,~ 

l><t v,,i11 A£f[J!IOOI TO IN™~ co,111m1011, :;rn,,.m, IN 00: CDUl(ly 
Of'OM<L"'4>,cwrlY"PC>lll•C.!TTAll'.CFW,::,U,W,.!:;01'.!Dt<OlllA!I 

~il~~·~1~~~1t:{+: 
T.\Xm:i.lllO.H-27-Jl»-014 

FLOOD HAZARD NOTE 
l~t PROPOllY oo;,;,,<10, ON !>IIS SWYCY UU: Wlll<lt. lOMl "
OUTSC[ Of' ll<C 11.2'1:#HJALOWl.t'.~A:IDQl>illl ll'fll«; 
fUlflUI.UIIJICIWCYU .... .awDIT~CYOtlTlt[f\OOl)~<;f'. 
u1r.,.,.>10,..11:.:iuo•r,,11,....,un:ci,,..,r,;.n:,:y-

SITE DATA 

LEGEND 

D 
0 

" ' w 

! 
~ . 
0 . 
a 

j 
! 

~ 
" (~l.., 

~1';'"";-:..51B"""'1 
~-1 (o,r (""'LY 0"'11JII~) 

C,,Tl)lftK;l•(Ctl) 
IU!t\Cc;.lt!l-(Cll) 

Fr=L:) 
0!NIOUT(C0) 
(lll,IM!l""'lllll(l,H) 

~::"i:)IIW.(GY!ll 
lf<DW(l("'1!J 

:,,_IDl!HITCIT(SO) 

nn:mcw........C(WII} 
lWPIDIC-OU:!IO-O 
1/liU!Y,,:UIW) ~:::=,~) 
~:;.~j[M) 
=wrnn(CM) 
r.,.::vAL\C(G'IJ 

1'<15f,/ll[W,IID{Q'J 

.,..__("") --..... OO<IDI ~.II,.>(("") 

~~"~·-
"°""""""'""") !J,l,IT...,~(WI) 

:..~.::.~o!.":lD,MI) 
='""..:) 

:!; 
~ 

~ 

1§ 
~~~ 
i:~ 
!ii 
~ 
i 

fJ:i 
iti: 
g~' ~Q; ' i t 1 I '"') ~;) _j I ~ 0' ~" ~"\ 

. iiil®t'fil<>• V I ~ '™""?~ ~-= . ' 
L -1 ,. - .. -~ . 

0
~ . • • .~ NORTHWAYDf~.IYE•60'WIPE . I ~ "o\ "'""""""'""""""'""" "'"" ··--

,, • O·-'"," " ~~ _, J?i 1( ··~ -= 
J55.64'(fl} 355.42'(1.1) 

l 
Ii 

i 

,1\\ 

.( 
fl 
~ 

I 
:; l 

J1 

11\\ 
·:i \ 

e 

7.o',.,.D 
.... l'>Cl'."'t 

EAST 236' OF LOT 10 

.. ·]--

14-27-306-014 
R-1 (ONE FAMILY O~NC) 

·~· '""' 

o-~ 
Ll 

•=D 

~ 

lie\ 

~ONPU.CR/\W. 

--
·-~ 

-·--

_, 
•= 

I=" 

u.~ 

'· o~ i 

o~ 

oSl! ) u- 1~-
'v rN-~;r :;,; .. ,.... ~ 

~ 
!U'NDl''t 

u~-
i-

/ I 

~

,!( 

I 
! 
i ! 

~Ulil<~,:c 

JSS.54'(R) JSS.;:";4'0,I) 

----~~~~~.:~~, .. 
PIKE STREET -WIDTH VARIES 

,-i;PIU-l.tPA=pllw,ICOICl<Clfall<II 

~,. 

~~~ 

I :~! 
i 
·i 
i 

21 

ii□· !JR ~~ 
~□CJ 

Locati"-~-~ Map 

TITLE POLICY NOTES 

"'-'- O<CCP11DNS - OIi NDl!ll ON TH>1i SUR'ICY IIOlt; 001".u<UI 
t=,,!'M =~~~]: ,.:;~~if ;"Jlc~~';t,_mu: 
1.CO__....TS.COMlliTICl!G,IIC:lRICTI~AHOOl><CRPR<M:.IOl<GDUf 

0Mlrn>iOMl'.5TR,""""",lf",,,.,,IIASCl)0MR'4:,C!UlR.ltCl.J:lUM. 
S,:X.l<.<l<O!CU,F.<W.l.,_~TAl\11.Dl!NAlDIM.ORICl>lil 
~l"'IIOI OIINSlRU><Oil flLC0Jl1XD 01 UIIO!=.l'...:t :.Jl>N<O 
UDcr:14n.PJ.GC<;>ll.il"TDUlT1a{fiOrl'T.OTTAD,.Q 

2 ~=:Ol~::::r~~~~~:T 
n, um: 1u. 1115 .,.o ,ao. {N(JUV,JTTA/iUJ 

1 ~~==~~:£=~ 
~tc(Rr,a> 111 UilDI "2000, l>;.cC ~!o. (ff.Om:tJ HlJ'IUJNJ 

SURVEY NOTES 
l!DC\0-.SNO Ofll";OIV/,llLI;~~UklH UOW<Q -.i, 
(IUII.D"'OC0Hl<lllllC:llONOIIIIUiUINC-l>ON~-.m,,N~t:a:>IT 

-- AAC ~o c:,;.,.,;o I~ 1,lR[l.'.T R!CHT-0"-\0 .. v U>ICI Dl>IOr 
COMPLI;IIDCll!'IICIPDUIJ.ANOAV/.1Wlll:!110Mll<l'.C0k"TROUMO 

l>Ol(:W.SNODll>DIY ... U:~C!:~ltlttl,Cf""1trl"OIISIOC\OM.I( 
CCl<$llilJCTIO'lDl!IIO'"'ITTi-

l>OI(: WA:!l<Ooo:El'IADl.lNOCNCt:~:;111:ux "'I ASIJUI> w.:rn: 
DUWF'; !>JIW DI! ~AAY I..AHtlf1IJ.. 

~ liO '<l:illil.l COltllJIC; Olt f.,._y _..._ ,aTCS"" l:00.CCT 

TI<1:UJWCW::,,,IUl>IJ,CW!nUl!IIH~...CASIU0"8lll .. ll<CITTU: 
.. 1UW<t:Lcn•1mo,11l[l;(:JOblllflllDII. 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIE_ICATJON 

f'{t,0.,,......:,m,o,TPRO>tJmOl,u.<;, 
"'"CIIIGl»li.1111m>u...,urvcoo,p.w,-

ENGINEERS 
CJVlL ENGINEERS 
lAND SURVEYORS 
lAND PLANNERS 

NOWAK& Fil.AUS ENG!NE[RS 
46mWOODWARDAVE. 
f'ONTlAC, Ml 48342-5032 

TEL(248J332-7'J31 
FAX.(2481332-8257 

rROJECT 

Longfellow School 
31 North Astor Street 
Pontiac, Michisan 

rRDJCCT WCATIDN 

Part of the West 12 of Section 
27, Tov.113 North, Runse 10 
Eust, City of Pontiuc, 
Oukland County, Micltisan 

ALTA/ACSM 
Lund Tit!e Survey 

DRAWN BY, 

J.NeMn 
DfSJCNtOBY, 

A~l'IIOvtOIW, 

C.Fmdley 
[MAil; 

cfindle_y_@/nov.'llkfrnus.µim 

~ftf (f) ;:-•- -



C 
.b 
0 
0 ..... 
0... 
<l) 
u l'J 0 
0 u 



Concept Only 

. .: .~ 

sao~ds SSOO!Sllq 1eoo1;J!JOJUUOU ·/+ 9-i, 
(1q, g / 1q1 •LZ) ~l!lltl 111a1111red.e (SJU:>J a1,<is-yo1 S( 

3SD·G3XIW A1lWYdl.11m\J 
'1001-I:JS i\\011:ilM>NO'l ~ I 3SVHd 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ 

ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX B OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF 
PONTIAC, AMENDING ARTICLE 2, SECTION 2.103-ZONING MAP, TO CHANGE THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATIONS FOR TEN (10) SPECIFIC PARCELS ON THE EAST SIDE OF 
MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD NORTH BETWEEN PIKE STREET AND 
NORTHWAY STREET. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendments. 

That the Zoning Map of the City of Pontiac, said map being incorporated by reference in the Zoning 

Ordinance for the City of Pontiac pursuant to Article 2 therefor, be and the same is hereby amended, 

changed, and altered so that hereafter the zoning classifications for the below legal description, 

commonly referred to as 31 N. Astor St., Parcel IDs: 14-27-306-014, 14-27-306-002, 14-27-306-003, 14-

27-306-004, 14-24-306-005, 14-24-306-006, 14-24-306-007, 14-24-306-008, 14-24-306-009, and 14-

24-306-010 from R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling. 

Provided Legal Description: 

14-27-306-014, T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 HOMESTEAD PARK NO. 1 LOT 186 to 189 INC & E 236 FT OF LOT 10 
A.P. NO 105 ADJ ON WEST. 
14-27-306-02 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 1 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-03 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 2 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-04 , T3N, Rl0E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 3 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-05 , T3N, Rl0E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 4 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-06 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 5 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-07 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 6 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-08 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 7 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-09 , T3N, RlOE, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 8 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-10 , T3N, Rl0E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 9 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR 



RD 11-10-10 CORR 

Section 2. Repealer and Severability. 

All other parts and provisions of the Zoning Ordinance shall remain in effect, amended only as 

provided above. If any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be declared to be 

unconstitutional, void, illegal or ineffective by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such section, 

clause or provision declared to be unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part 

of this Ordinance, but the remainder of this Ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Effective Date 

The foregoing amendment to the City of Pontiac Zoning Map was approved and adopted by the 

City Council on _______ _, 2023, after a public hearing as required pursuant to the 

Michigan Act 110 of 2006, as amended. The Ordinance shall be effective on 

________ _, 2023, which date is the eighth day after publication of a Notice of 

Adoption and Posting of the Zoning Map Amendment in a publication in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the zoning district as required by Section 401 of Act 110 of 2006, as amended. 

However, this effective date shall be extended as necessary to comply with the requirements of 

Section 402 of Act 110, as amended. 

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED. 



APPROVAL 
If the City is satisfied that the Applicant meets the standards of the Zoning 

Ordinance to be eligible for a rezoning, 
2 

It may approve same. If Council approves 
the conditional rezoning, the Conditional Rezoning Agreement incorporating the 
voluntarily offered conditions has been provided by our office. An appropriate 
motion would be: 

"I move to approve the second reading and adoption of a 
conditional rezoning of parcel number 14-27-306-014 
commonly known as 31 North Astor Street and parcel number 
14-27-306-014, parcel number 14-27-306-002, parcel number 
14-27-306-003, parcel number 14-27-306-004, parcel number 
14-27-306-005, parcel number 14-27-306-006, parcel number 
14-27-306-007, parcel number 14-27-306-008, parcel number 
14-27-306-009, and parcel number 14-27-306-010, Pontiac, MI, 
from R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 
based upon a finding that the Application meets criteria for 
amendment of the Zoning Map pursuant to the City of 
Pontiac Zoning Ordinances (Sec. 6.804), subject to the 
following conditions voluntarily offered by the Applicant: 
'Applicant agrees to the renovation or demolition of the vacant 
building known as the former Longfellow School Facility (the 
"Building") prior to the commencement of any vertical construction 
of any new building, home, or other permanent structure on 
the rezoned Property. The Applicant shall renovate the Building if 
it is structurally and/or financially feasible. If it is not 
structurally or financially feasible to renovate the Building, the 
Applicant shall demolish the Building. In the event 
Applicant renovates the building, upon the issuance of one 
or more Certificate(s) of Occupancy by the City for at least a 
minimum of 2,600 square feet of the non-residential space and a 
minimum of 2,700 square feet of multifamily residential space. 
Additionally, in the event any one or more of the ten (10) vacant 
land parcels included in this conditional rezoning are removed or 
separated from the project site, it shall revert to its original 
zoning as it exists on Thursday, July 6, 2023."' 

2 
Unless extended by the City Council for good cause, the rezoning with conditions shall expire following a period of two (2) 

years from the effective date of the rezoning unless bona fide development of the Property pursuant to approved building and 
other permits required by the City commences within the two (2) year period. 



DENIAL 
If the Council wishes to deny the conditional· rezoning request, an 

appropriation motion would be: 

"I move to deny the conditional rezoning for parcel number 
14-27- 306-014, commonly known as 31 N. Astor Street, and 
pamber 14-27-306-014, parcel number 14-27-306-002, parcel 
number 14-27-306-003, parcel number 14-27-306-004, parcel 
number 14-27-306-005, parcel number 14-27-306-006, parcel 
number 14-27-306-007, parcel number 14-27-306-008, parcel 
number 14-27-306-009, and parcel number 14-27-306-010, from R-1 
One Family Dwelling to R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling, based upon a 
finding that the Application does not meet the criteria for amendment 
of the Zoning Map pursuant to the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance 
(Sec. 6.804)." 



#3 

ORDINANCE 



Resolution of the Pontiac City Council 
To Approve First Reading of the Municipal Code Ordinance Text 
Amendments to Amend Article VI, Division 7, Chapter 22, Section 

806 to clarify order to vacate and premises not to be occupied 
subsections and to add subsections (m) through (t) to include 

suspension of rent payments when rental property owners fail 
comply with the requirements to obtain a Certificate of Compliance 

and/or register as a rental 
property. 

P9NTU. 
The HEART of Oakland County~~ 

Resolution of the Pontiac City Council To Approve First Reading of the Municiapl Code 
Ordinance Text Amendments to Amend Article VI, Division 7, Chapter 22, Section 806 to clarify 
order to vacate and premises not to be occupied subsections and to add subsections (m) through 
(t) to include suspension of rent payments when rental property owners fail comply with the 
requirements to obtain a Certificate of Compliance and/or register as a rental property. 

At a meeting of the City Council ("Council") of the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan (the "City") at a meeting held on July 25, 2023, at 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, 
MI 48342 at 6:00p.m., there were: 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following preambles and resolution were offered by 

seconded by__,.-------------

and ---------

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend the 
City of Pontiac Municipal Code Ordinance to amend Article VI, Division 7, Chapter 22, Section 806 
(Certificate of Compliance) to clarify order to vacate and premises not to be occupied subsections and 
to add subsections (m) through (t) to include suspension ofrent payments when rental property owner 
fails to comply with the requirements to obtain a Certificate of Compliance and/or register as a rental 
property. 



WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest for the health, safety, and 
welfare, to approve the first reading of the amendments to the Municipal Code Ordinance Text 
Amendments as presented. 

NOW Tlffi.EFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby adopts the first 
reading of the text amendments as presented to the City Council on------~----' 
to the City's Municipal Code. 

A roll call vote on the foregoing resolution was taken, the result of which is as follows: 

YES: 

NO: 

ABSTAIN: 

THE RESOLUTION WAS THEREUPON DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk if the City of Pontiac, Michigan, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council at a 
regular meeting held on ________ , the original of which is on file in my office, and that 
such meeting was conducted and public notice thereof was given pursuant to and in compliance with 
Act No. 267, Michigan Public Acts of 1976, as amended, and that minutes of such meeting were 
kept and are available as required by such Act. 

Dated: ---------

By:--------------
Its: City Clerk 



INllD 
The HEART of Oakland County 

Date 

Name 
Address 
City, State, Zip 

Rental Property Non-Compliance 
Letter to Owner 

RE: Rental Property Address 

Dear Mr./Mrs., 

In accordance with City of Pontiac Municipal Code Ordinance Article VI, Chapter 22, 
Division 7, Section 806, your tenant, TENANT NAME, at ADDRESS has suspended rental 
payments due to your failure to obtain a Certificate of Compliance, suspension of a Certificate of 
Compliance and/or failure to register your rental property with the City of Pontiac. All rental 
payments for the above property will be paid into an escrow account that has been set up with the 
City of Pontiac Treasurer's Office. An administrative fee of One Hundred Twenty-Five ($125.00) 
Dollars has also been applied to your account. 

Upon receipt of this letter, please immediately contact the City of Pontiac Building 
Department Monday through Friday 8:30am to 4:30pm at 248-758-2800 to obtain a Certificate of 
Compliance. Please direct all questions to the Building Department. Failure to obtain a Certificate 
of Compliance and/or properly register your property as a rental proeprty will result in rent 
escrow payments being released to the Tenant. 

Sincerely, 

Porche Prater 
City of Pontiac Treasurer 
47450 Woodward Ave., 
Pontiac, MI 48342 
248-758-3000 



D 
The HEART of Oakland County 

Rental Property Non-Compliance 
Escrow Account Intake 

Owner/ Landlord Information 
Name(s): 
Address: ------------------------
Phone Number: ----------------------
Em ail: -------------------------

Tenant Information 
Name(s): 
Address: ------------------------
Phone Number: ----------------------
Em ail: -------------------------

Rental Property Information 
Rental Property Address: __________________ _ 
Monthly Rent Payment: __________________ _ 
Monthly Rent Due Date: -------------------
Le as e Start Date: ---------------------
Le as e End Date (if known): _________________ _ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 

Tenant Name 

Tenant Signature 

Building Department Name 

Building Department Signature 

Rental Property Non-Compliance Intake Form 
7/2023 

Date 

Date 



Exhibit A 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE No. 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC MUNICIPAL CODE ARTICLE 
VI, DIVISION 7, CHAPTER 22, SECTION 806 TO CLARIFY ORDER TO VACATE AND 
PREMISES NOT TO OCCUPIED SUBSECTIONS AND TO INCLUDE SUSPENSION 
OF RENT PAYMENTS WHEN RENTAL PROPERTY OWNER FAILS TO COMPLY 
WITH THE REQUIRMENTS TO OBTAIN A CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE TO 
INCLUDE: 

ARTICLE VI, DIVISION 7, CHAPTER 22, SECTION 806 

The City of Pontiac Ordains: 

Amend Article VI, Chapter 22, Division 7, Section 806- Cetiificate of 
compliance is amended to clarify order to vacate and premises not to be 
occupied subsections and to add subsections (m) through (t) to include 
suspension of rent payments when rental property owners fail comply with the 
requirements to obtain Certificate of Compliance and/or register as a rental 
property . 

. 22-806 .. Certificate .. of.compliance .................... .............................................................................................................................................................................. . 

(a) An owner or agent shall apply for a certificate of compliance. Inspection and issuance of 

certificates shall be in accordance with the requirements of this division and with rules and 

procedures established by the Building Code Official. 

(b) An application for a certificate of compliance shall be made when the owner enrolls in the 

registry of owners and premises. If the owner fails to register within the time required, any 

occupant of unregistered or uncertified premises may make application. 

( c) Single- and two-family dwellings regulated by this division shall not be occupied unless a 

certificate of compliance has been issued by the Department of Building Safety. The certificates 

shall be issued only upon prior inspection of the premises, except as provided in subsection (h) 

of this section. The certificate shall be issued within 15 days if the dwelling is entitled thereto at 

the date of inspection. 

( d) Inspections shall be made prior to first occupancy of single- and two-family dwellings 

regulated by this division when the construction or alteration is completed. 



( e) Upon finding that there is no condition that would constitute a hazard to the health and 

safety of the occupants, and the premises are otherwise fit for occupancy, the certificate of 

compliance shall be issued. If the finding is of a condition that would constitute a hazard to 

health or safety, no certificate shall be issued, and an order to comply with this division shall be 

issued immediately and served upon the owner in accordance with section 22-807. On 

reinspection and proof of compliance, the order shall be rescinded, and a certificate issued. 

( f) When a certificate of compliance is withheld pending compliance, no premises that have not 

been occupied for dwelling purposes shall be so occupied, and those premises that have been or 

are occupied may be ordered vacated until reinspection and proof of compliance have been 

established by the Department of Building Safety. 

(g) A certificate of compliance shall be issued on condition that the premises remain in safe, 

healthful, and fit condition for occupancy. If upon reinspection the Department of Building 

Safety determines that conditions exist that constitute a hazard to health or safety, the certificate 

may be immediately suspended, a notice shall be served upon the owner to comply with this 

division, and the areas may be vacated as provided in subsection (f). 

(h) The Department of Building Safety may authorize the issuance of a temporary certificate 

without inspection for those premises in which there are no violations of record and shall issue 

such temporary ce1tificates upon application in cases where inspections are not made within a 

reasonable time. Temporary ce1tificates may also be issued for premises with violations of record 

when the owner can show proof of having undertaken to correct such conditions. 

(i) A violation of this division shall not prevent the issuance of a ce1tificate of compliance, but 

the Department of Building Safety shall not issue a certificate when the existing conditions 

constitute a hazard to the health or safety of those who may occupy the premises. 

(i) It shall be required, and the responsibility of the owner, to maintain and post on the inside of 

the main entrance to the dwelling unit one copy of the certificate of compliance, either temporary 

or pennanent, as such certificates are issued, at the premises for which they have been issued. 

(k) No certificate of compliance shall be issued for any property unless all property taxes and 

water and sewer bills associated with the parcel in question are cmTent and that the owner is in 

compliance with the provisions of the Pontiac hlcome Tax Ordinance. 



(1) Any certificate of compliance issued by the Department of Building Safety after September 

1, 2011, with an expiration date less than one year from the date of issuance, shall be deemed to 

expire three years after the date of issuance. The Department of Building Safety shall correct all 

records to reflect this change. 

(m) It shall be unlawful for an owner to allow any unoccupied rental property to be occupied, or 

to collect rent from a tenant for occupancy of a rental property, during or for any time in which 

there is not a valid certificate of compliance for the rental property and/or the property is not 

registered as a rental property with the City of Pontiac. This subsection does not apply to a tenant 

where the owner established that the conditions which constitute a hazard to health or safety 

were caused by that same tenant. 

(n) Tenants of an occupied rental property that lacks a certificate of compliance and/or has not 

registered with the City of Pontiac as a rental property shall pay the rent that would otherwise 

have been due into an escrow account with the City of Pontiac under Municipal Code Chapter 

22-765. This subsection does not apply to a tenant where the owner established that the 

conditions which constitute a hazard to health or safety were caused by that same tenant. 

If the owner of the rental property obtains a certificate of compliance and/or registers the 

property as a rental property with the City of Pontiac within the first 30 days in which payments 

are made into the escrow account, the rent in the escrow account shall be paid to the owner, 

prorated based on a 30-day calendar, less the actual administrative fees charged by the City of 

Pontiac and third-party financial institution. If the owner fails to obtain a certificate of 

compliance and/or properly register the rental property within those first 30 days, the rent in the 

escrow account shall be paid, at the end of those 30 days, to the tenant and the administrative 

fees shall be paid by the owner. 

Thereafter, the tenant shall continue paying rent into the escrow account until the owner obtains 

a ce1iificate of compliance and/or properly registers the rental property with the City of Pontiac. 

At the end of every 30 days in which the owner fails to obtain a certificate of compliance and/or 

properly register the rental property, the rent in the escrow account shall be paid to the tenant, 

and the administrative fees shall be paid by the owner. If the owner of the rental property obtains 

a certificate of compliance and/or registers the rental property, the rent accrued in the escrow 

account shall be paid to the owner, prorated based on a 30-day calendar, less the actual 

administrative fees charged by the City of Pontiac and third-pariy financial institution. 



( o) The administrative fee is a monthly fee that will be accrued every month the escrow account 

remains open. The amount of that fee shall be established by the Building Department. If the rent 

held in escrow is being paid to the owner, the administrative fees will be deducted at that time. 

However, if the administrative fees are greater than the amount held in escrow, the remaining 

balance will be levied as a fine against the owner. If rent held in escrow is being paid to the 

tenant, all administrative fees will be levied as a fine against the owner. All costs in connection 

with this section, including administrative fees, shall be a lien upon the land and all the costs of 

such fees remaining unpaid each year, pursuant to provisions contained in the Chatter of the City, 

shall be collected in the same manner that other special assessments are collected under the 

Charter. 

(p) When the certificate of compliance and/or registration of rental property has been suspended, 

or has not been issued, and the rents thereafter withheld are not paid into the escrow account, 

actions for rent and for possession of the premises for nonpayment of rent may be maintained, 

subject to such defenses as the tenant or occupant may have upon the lease or contract. 

(q) If the tenant tenninates his or her tenancy or right to occupy prior to the owner's unde1taking 

to repair or if an order to vacate is issued, the tenant shall be returned any unexpired part of the 

rent paid in escrow and the administrative fees shall be paid by the owner pursuant to subsection 

(o). 

(r) Nothing in this aiticle shall be construed to permit eviction of an existing tenant from a rental 

property or to deprive existing tenants of their rights to possession of a rental property under the 

laws of this state and this Code, and such existing tenants shall have a right under this Code to 

retain possession of a rental prope1ty notwithstanding an owner's inability to collect rent from 

such tenants pursuant to this section. An owner may not use eviction as a form of retaliation. 

(s) Subsection (m) of this Code shall not be construed to penalize the tenant or occupant of a 

rental property for occupancy of a rental property that does not have a valid ce1tificate of 

compliance. 

(t) An owner shall.not retaliate in any way, including but not limited to using eviction against a 

tenant and/or increasing rental rates, for a tenant exercising their rights under this section. If a 

court rnles that an owner has retaliated against a tenant, the court shall award that tenant all fines 

and costs, including attorney fees incurred by the tenant in bringing or def ending against any 



associated court proceedings. The court shall award any actual damages incurred by the tenant or 

alternatively at the discretion of the court, liquidated damages treble the amount of the monthly 

rent payment the tenant is or had been paying to the owner. 



Exhibit B 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

ORDINANCE No. 

;\J\f ORDINAN<;;:li.IO_.t\MEND THE CITY OF PONTIAC MUNJ.(;JJ>1\L CODE AR.TKL.E 
VL DIVISION 7, CHAPTER 22. SECTION 806 TO CLARIFY ORDER TO VACATE AND 
PREiviISES NOT TO OCCUPIED SUBSECTIONS AND TO INCLUDE SUSPENSION OF 
RENT PAYMENTS WHEN RENTAL PROPERTY OWNER FAILS TO CO/v!PLY WITH 
THE REQUIRMENTS TO OBTAIN A CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE TO 
INCLUDE: 

ARTICLE VI, DIVISION 7. CHAPTER 22, SECTION 806 

The Citv of Pontiac Ordains: 

Amend Artick VI, Chapter 22, Division 7. Section 806- Certificate of 
compliance is am.:;:nded to clarify order to vacate and premises not to be 
occupied subsections and to add subsections (m) through {t} to include 
suspension of rent payments when rental prope1iy owners fail comply with the 
requirements to obtain Certificate of Compliance and/or register as a rental 
prope1iy. 

22-806 Certificate of compliance. 

(a) An owner or agent shall apply for a certificate of compliance. Inspection and issuance of 

certificates shall be in accordance with the requirements of this division and with mies and 

procedures established by the Building Code Official. 

(b) An application for a ce1iificate of compliance shall be made when the owner enrolls in the 

registry of owners and premises. If the owner fails to register within the time required, any 

occupant ofnnregistered or uncertified premises may make application. 

(c) Single- and two-family dwellings regulated by this division shall not be occupied unless a 

certificate of compliance has been issued by the Department of Building Safety. The ce1iificates 

shall be issued only upon prior inspection of the premises, except as provided in subsection (h) 

of this section. The certificate shall be issued within 15 days if the dwelling is entitled thereto at 

the date of inspection. 

(d) Inspections shall be made prior to first occupancy of single- and two-fiunily dwellings 

regulated by this division when the constrnction or alteration is completed. 



(e) Upon finding that there is no condition that would constitute a hazard to the health and 

safety of the occupants, and the premises are otherwise fit for occupancy, the certificate of 

compliance shall be issued. If the finding is of a condition that would constitute a hazard to 

health or safety, no certificate shall be issued, and an order to comply with this division shall be 

issued immediately and served upon the owner in accordance with section 22-807. On 

reinspection and proof of compliance, the order shall be rescinded, and a certificate issued. 

(f) When a certificate of compliance is withheld pending compliance, no premises that have not 

been occupied for dwelling purposes shall be so occupied, and those premises that have been or 

are occupied may be ordered vacated until reinspection and proof of compliance have been 

established by the Department of Building Safety. 

(g) A ce1iificate of compliance shall be issued on condition that the premises remain in safe, 

healthful, and fit condition for occupancy. If upon reinspection the Department of Building 

Safety determines that conditions exist that constitute a hazard to health or safety, the certificate 

may be immediately suspended-and, a notice shall be served upon the owner to comply with this 

division7, and the areas may be vacated as provided in subsection (fl.,. 

(h) The Department of Building Safety may authorize the issuance of a temporary certificate 

without inspection for those premises in which there are no violations of record, and shall issue 

such temporary certificates upon application in cases where inspections are not made within a 

reasonable time. Temporaty cetiificates may also be issued for premises with violations of record 

when the owner can show proof of having undertaken to c01Tect such conditions. 

(i) A violation of this division shall not prevent the issuance of a certificate of compliance, but 

the Depaiiment of Building Safety shall not issue a certificate when the existing conditions 

constitute a hazard to the health or safety of those who may occupy the premises. 

(j) It shall be required, and the responsibility of the owner, to maintain and post on the inside of 

the main entrance to the dwelling unit one copy of the certificate of compliance, either temporary 

or permanent, as such certificates are issued, at the premises for which they have been issued. 

(k) No certificate of compliance shall be issued for any property unless all property taxes and 

water and sewer bills associated with the parcel in question are cmTent and that the owner is in 

compliance with the provisions of the Pontiac Income Tax Ordinance, 



(I) Any certificate of compliance issued by the Department of Building Safety after September 

1, 2011, with an expiration date less than one year from the date of issuance, shall be deemed to 

expire three years after the date of issuance. The Depaiiment of Building Safety shall conect all 

records to reflect this change. 

(m) It shall be unlawful for an owner to allow anv unoccupied rental property to be occupied. or 

to collect rent from a tenant for occupancv ofa re11tal property, during or for anv time in which 

there is not a valid certificate of compliance for the r<'!nlal propertv and/or the property is not 

re2:istered as a rentul property with the Citv of Pontiac. This subsection does not apply to a tenant 

where the owner establishc:d that the conditions which constitute a hazard to health or safetv 

were caused by that same tenant. 

(n) Te11ai1ts of an occupied rental property that lacks a certificate of compliance and/or has not 

registered with the City of Pontiac as a rental property shall pav the rent that would otherwise 

have been due into an escrow account with the City of Pontiac under lv1unicipal Code Chapter 

22-765. This subsection does not apply to a tenant where the owner established that the 

conditions which constitute a hazard to health or safetv were caused by that same tenant. 

If the owner of the rental property obtains a certificate of compliance and!or registers the 

prope1iv as a rental propertv with the Citv of Pontiac within the first 30 days in which payments 

are made into the escrow account, the rent in the escrow account shall be paid to the owner, 

prorated based on a 30-day calendar, less the actual administrative fees charged by the Citv of 

Pontiac and third-party financial institution. lf the owner fails to obtain a certificate of 

compliance and/or properly re2ister the rental property within those first 30 davs. the rent in the 

escrow account shall be paid, at the end of those 30 davs. to the tenant and the administrative 

fees shall be paid by the owner. 

Thereafter, the tenant shall continue payin£< rent into the escrow account until the owner obtains 

a certificate of compliance and/or properly registers the rental propertv with the City of Pontiac. 

At the end of every 30 days in which the owner fails to obtain a certificate of compliance and/or 

properly register the rental property, the rent in the escrow account shall be paid to the tenant. 

and the administrative fees shall be paid by the owner. If the owner of the rental property obtains 

a certificate of compliance and/or registers the rental property, the rent accrued in the e?._\;_!.:Q_\Y. 

account shall be paid to the owner. prorated based on a 30-day calendar. less the actual 

administrative fees charged by the City of Pontiac and third-party financial institution. 



(o) The administrative fee is a monthlv fee that will be accrued every month the escrow account 

remains open. The amount of that fee shall be established by the Building Department. If the rent 

held in escrow is being paid to the owner, the administrative fees will be deducted at that time. 

However. if the administrative fees are greater than the amount held in escrow, the remaining 

balance will be levied as a fine against the owner. If rent held in escrow is being paid to the 

tenant. all administrative fo~s will be levied as a fine against the owner. All cost in connection 

with this section, including administrative fees, shall be a Lien upon the land and all the costs of 

such fees remaining unpaid each vear, pursuant to provisions contained in the Charter of the City, 

shall be collected in the same manner that other special assessments are collected under the 

Chartec 

(p) \\/hen the certificate of compliance and/or registration of rental property has been suspended, 

or .. has_not __ been issued, and the rents thereafter withhdd are __ not paid_into the .. escrow __ account, 

actions for rent and for possession of the premises for nonpavment of rent may be maintained, 

subiect to such defenses as the tenant or occupimt mav have upon the lease or contract. 

{g_) Tf the t.:nant terminates his or her tenancy or right to occupy prior to the owner's undertaking 

to repair or if an order to vacate is issued, the tenant shall be returned anv unexpired part of the 

rent paid in escrow and the administrative fees shall be paid bv the owner pursuant to subsection 

ill1 

[!1 Nothing in this atiicle shall be construed to permit eviction of an existing tenant from a r1cntal 

property or to deprive existing tenants of their rights to possession of a rental property under the 

laws of this state and this Code, and such existing tenants shall have a right under this Code to 

retain possession of a rental property notwithstanding an owner's inabilitv to collect rent from 

such tenants pursuant to this section. An own.:r may not use eviction as a form ofretaliation. 

{;;) Sub~ection (m) of this Code shall not be construed to penalize the tenant or occupant of a 

rental property for occupancy of a rental propertv that does not have a valid certificate of 

compliance. 

(!) An ow11er shall not retaliate in any wav. including but not limited to using eviction aga_i.11st a 

!Y.!l.<1HL\l.nill.or increasing rental rates for a tenant...<~:xqg_\§.i.!lg their ri,;hts uns;!Y.Lilli!i..§.ection. If a 

court rules that an owner has retaliated against a tenant the court shall award that tenant all fines 

and costs, including attornev fees incurred by the tenant in bringing or defending against any 



associated court proceedings. The court shall award anv actual damages incurred by the tenant or 

alternatively at the discretion of the court, liquidated damaoes treble the amount of the monthly 

rent payment the tenant is or had been paying to the owner. 

..___ _______________________________________ >.·; Formatted: Font color: Black, Ligatures: None 

Formatted: Space After: 12 pt, Line spacing: At least 
19.2 pt, Font Alignment: Baseline 



Exhibit C 



HOUSING LAW OF MICHIGAN (EXCERPT) 
Act 167 of 1917 

125.530 Certificate withheld; premises not to be occupied; conditions of issuance; 
suspension of rent payments, escrow; account for rent and possession. 
Sec. 130. (1) When a certificate is withheld pending compliance, no premises which have not been 

occupied for dwelling or rooming purposes shall be so occupied, and those premises which have been or are 
occupied for dwelling or rooming purposes may be ordered vacated until reinspection and proof of 
compliance in the discretion of the enforcing agency. 

(2) A certificate of compliance shall be issued on condition that the premises remain in safe, healthful and 
fit condition for occupancy. If upon reinspection the enforcing agency determines that conditions exist which 
constitute a hazard to health or safety, the certificate shall be immediately suspended as to affected areas, and 
the areas may be vacated as provided in subsection (I). 

(3) The duty to pay rent in accordance with the te1ms of any lease or agreement or under the provisions of 
any statute shall be suspended and the suspended rentals shall be paid into an escrow account as provided in 
subsection ( 4 ), during that period when the premises have not been issued a certificate of compliance, or when 
such certificate, once issued, has been suspended. This subsection does not apply until the owner has had a 
reasonable time after the effective date of this article or after notice of violations to make application for a 
temporary certificate, as provided in section 131. Nor does this subsection apply where the owner establishes 
that the conditions which constitute a hazard to health or safety were caused by the occupant or occupants. 
The rent, once suspended, shall again become due in accordance with the tenns of the lease or agreement or 
statute from and after the time of reinstatement of the certificate, or where a temporary certificate has been 
issued, as provided in section 131. 

(4) Rents due for the period during which rent is suspended shall be paid into an escrow account 
established by the enforcing officer or agency, to be paid thereafter to the landlord or any other party 
authorized to make repairs, to defray the cost of correcting the violations. The enforcing agency shall return 
any unexpended part of sums paid under this section, attributable to the unexpired portion of the rental period, 
where the occupant te1minates his tenancy or right to occupy prior to the unde1iaking to repair. 

(5) When the certificate of compliance has been suspended, or has not been issued, and the rents thereafter 
withheld are not paid into the escrow account, actions for rent and for possession of the premises for 
nonpayment of rent may be maintained, subject to such defenses as the tenant or occupant may have upon the 
lease or contract. 

History: Add. 1968, Act 286, Eff. Nov. 15, 1968. 

Rendered Thursday, April 20, 2023 

© 

Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 19 of 2023 

Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov 



#4 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT 

This Conditional Rezoning Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this __ day of 
______ , 2023, by and between THE CITY OF PONTIAC, with its offices located at 
47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, MI 48342 (the "City"), and Red Chickweed LLC ("Red 
Chickweed") with its principal office located at 735 W Huron St., Pontiac, MI 48342. 

THE PARTIES RECITE THAT: 

WHEREAS, Red Chickweed owns a certain parcel of real property located within the City 
of Pontiac, Parcel ID: 14-27-306-014 which is commonly described as 31 N. Astor, Pontiac, 
Michigan, 14-27-306-002, 14-27-306-003, 14-27-306-004, 14-27-306-005, 14-27-306-006, 14-27-
306-007, 14-27-306-008, 14-27-306-009, and 14-27-306-310. 

WHEREAS, Red Chickweed seeks re-zoning of the referenced parcel, as shown on Exhibit 
A. The parcels where rezoning is sought shall be referred to herein as the "Property." The Property 
is currently zoned as follows and the legal description for the Property is on Exhibit A attached 
hereto: 

Table Al: 

!Parcel Number !Previous Zoning District Rezoned to the following 
Zoning District: 

14-27-306-014, R-1 R-3 
14-2 7-3 06-002, One Family Dwelling Multiple Family Dwelling 
14-27-306-003, 
14-27-306-004, 
14-24-306-005, 
14-24-306-006, 
14-24-3 06-007, 
14-24-306-008, 
14-24-3 06-009, 
14-24-306-010. 



WHEREAS, under, and pursuant to, Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 

2008 PA 110, as amended (codified at MCL § 125.3405 et seq), certain conditions voluntarily offered 

by the owner of land, including an agreement between the City and Red Chickweed, may become a 

condition ofrezoning of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Red Chickweed submitted the Application for Conditional Rezoning, which 

was supplemented by the Offer of Conditions on June 29, 2023, attached as Exhibit B ( collectively 

"Application"), voluntarily offering, in writing, certain conditions to rezone the Property as set forth 

in the table above, subject to the conditions of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council on July 25, 2023, voted to approve the request for Conditional 

Rezoning and adopted Ordinance No. [add Ordinance number] to amend the City's Zoning Map 

Ordinance based upon the conditions set forth in this Agreement and the attached Exhibits; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises 

hereinafter set forth, the City and Red Chickweed agree as follows: 

1. CONDITIONAL REZONING, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT, AND 
CONDITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS TO USE OF PROPERTY 

A. Conditional Rezoning. Consistent with MCL §125.3405, the Property has 

been conditionally rezoned from the classification(s) One Family Dwelling (R-1) to Multiple 

Family Dwelling (R-3), as set forth in Table Al above, with conditions as approved by the 

City Council based upon Red Chickweed's Offer of Conditions, subject to, and in accordance 

with, this Agreement, unless this Agreement is amended by mutual agreement of the City 

and Red Chickweed, following public hearing, or unless Red Chickweed determines to use 

the Property in accordance with the zoning applicable to the Property under and in 

accordance with the termination provisions set forth herein. Red Chickweed and future 

owners of the Property shall not develop and use the Property in a manner inconsistent with 

this Agreement. 

B. Project Definition. The Project shall be based on Red Chickweed's Site Plan 

Approval Application Submittal Package that is to be submitted subsequent to the approval 

and execution of this Agreement and is a condition of this Agreement as more fully set forth 

below. Except as modified herein, or pursuant to any variances or deviations approved by 

the City, the Property shall remain subject to all other zoning and use district regulations of 

the City Zoning Ordinance, for property zoned One Family Dwelling (R-1) and Multiple 

Family Dwelling (R-3), as applicable in accordance with the zoning of each respective parcel 

as set forth in Table A 1 above, and as limited by Red Chickweed's Offer of Conditions, and 

shall remain subject to all other requirements of the City's building, zoning, and other land 

use regulations. 

2 



C. Offered Conditions. Red Chickweed has voluntarily offered the following 

condition in consideration for the City's granting of the rezoning: 

Red Chickweed agrees to the renovation or demolition of the vacant building 

known as the former Longfellow School Facility (the "Building") prior to the 

commencement of any vertical construction of any new building, home, or other 

permanent structure on the rezoned Property. The Applicant shall renovate the 

Building if it is structurally and/or financially feasible. If it is not structurally or 

financially feasible to renovate the Building, the Applicant shall demolish the 

Building. In the event Applicant renovates the building, the vertical construction 

can begin upon the issuance of one or more Certificate( s) of Occupancy by the City 

for at least a minimum of 2,600 square feet of the non-residential space and a 

minimum of 2,700 square feet of the multifamily residential space. Additionally, 

in the event any one or more of the ten (10) vacant land parcels included in this 

conditional rezoning are removed or separated from the project site, it shall revert 

to its original zoning as it exists on Thursday, July 6, 2023. 

D. Acknowledgement. Red Chickweed hereby acknowledges that the rezoning 

with conditions was proposed by Red Chickweed to induce the City to grant the rezoning, 

and that the City relied upon such proposal and would not have granted the rezoning but for 

the terms spelled out in the Conditional Rezoning Agreement; and, Red Chickweed further 

agrees and acknowledges that the conditions and Conditional Rezoning Agreement are 

authorized by all applicable state and federal laws and constitution, and that the Agreement 

is valid and was entered into on a voluntary basis, and represents a permissible exercise of 

authority by the City. Red Chickweed further represents and warrants that it agrees to all of 

the following: 

i. That the property in question shall not be developed or used in a manner inconsistent 

with this conditional rezoning agreement. 

11. That each of the requirements and conditions set forth in this Agreement represents 

a necessary and reasonable measure which, when considered with all other conditions 

and requirements, is roughly proportional to the increased impact created by the use 

represented in the approved rezoning with conditions, taking into consideration the 

changed zoning district classification and the specific use authorization granted. 

111. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as replacing the requirement for Red 

Chickweed to obtain preliminary and final Site Plan, subdivision, condominium, or 

special land use review and approval, as applicable. 

3 



2. PERIOD OF APPROVAL. Unless extended by the City Council for good cause, 
the rezoning with conditions shall expire following a period of two (2) years from the effective 
date of the rezoning, unless bona fide development of the property pursuant to approved building 
and other permits required by the City commences within the two (2) year period and proceeds 
diligently and in good faith as required by ordinance to completion. 

A. Expiration. In the event bona fide development has not commenced within 
two (2) years from the effective date of the rezoning, the rezoning with conditions and the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement shall be void and of no effect. Red Chickweed may apply 
for a one (1) year extension one (1) time. The request must be submitted to the City Clerk 
before the two (2) year time limit expires. Red Chickweed must show good cause as to why 
the extension should be granted. 

B. Effect of Expiration. If the rezoning with conditions becomes void in the 
manner provided in this section, no development shall be undertaken or permits for 
development issued until a new zoning district classification of the property has been 
established. Either or both of the following actions may be taken: 

1. Red Chickweed may seek a new rezoning of the property and the City may approve 
same; and/or 

11. Pursuant to MCL 125.3405, the land shall revert to its former zoning classification 
following the process for approval of a rezoning with conditions. 

C. Extension. If an extension of approval is granted by the City Council, a new 
conditional rezoning agreement with the new expiration date shall be recorded. 

3. RECORDATION. This Rezoning shall become effective following publication in 
the manner provided by law and recording of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement with the 
County Register of Deeds. 

4. DEFAULT. If development and/or actions are undertaken on or with respect to the 

property in violation of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement, such development and/or actions 
shall constitute a nuisance per se. In such case, the City may issue a stop work order relative to 
the property and seek any other lawful remedies. Until curative action is taken to bring the 
property into compliance with the Conditional Rezoning Agreement, the City may withhold, or, 
following notice and an opportunity to be heard, revoke permits and certificates in addition to, 
or in lieu of, such other lawful action to achieve compliance. In the event that Red Chickweed 
defaults on the condition(s) of this Agreement, then, the City may, at its option and within its 
sole discretion, terminate this Agreement. In the event that this Agreement is terminated by then, 
by written notice given by the City to Red Chickweed within three (3) months following such 
failure by Red Chickweed, the City may, at its option and within its sole discretion, declare the 

4 



Property to revert back to its previous Zoning District(s) and terminate the approval of any Site 
Plan for the Project. 

5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, if any, and 
the instruments which are to be executed in accordance with the requirements hereof set forth all 
the covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions, and understandings between the 
City and Red Chickweed concerning the Project as of the date hereof, and there are no covenants, 
agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between 
them other than as set forth herein. 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the City and Red 
Chickweed shall be defined solely by the expressed terms of this Agreement, including the 
implementing documents described or contemplated herein, and neither the cooperation of the 
parties hereunder nor anything expressly or implicitly contained herein shall be deemed or 
construed to create a partnership, limited or general, or joint venture between the City and Red 
Chickweed, nor shall any party or their agent be deemed to be the agent or employee of any other 
party to this Agreement. 

7. MODIFICATION. This Agreement can be modified or amended only by a written 

instrument expressly referring hereto and executed by the City and Red Chickweed. 

8. MICHIGAN LAW TO CONTROL. This Agreement and the rights and obligations 
of the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with Michigan law. 

9. DUE AUTHORIZATION. The City and Red Chickweed each warrant and 
represent to the other that this Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof have been duly 
authorized and approved by, in the case of the City, its City Board and all other governmental 
agencies whose approval may be required as a precondition to the effectiveness hereof, and as 
to Red Chickweed, by the members thereof, and that the persons who have executed this 
Agreement below have been duly authorized to do so. The parties hereto agree to provide such 
opinions of counsel as to the due authorization and binding effect of this Agreement and the 
collateral documents contemplated hereby as the other party shall reasonably request. 

10. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The approval of the terms, provisions, and 
conditions of this Agreement are for the benefit of the Property and shall run with the Property 
and shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties to this Agreement and their respective 
successors, assigns, and transferees. 

5 



Exhibit A 



11. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. The obligations hereunder of the City and Red 
Chickweed shall constitute solely the obligations of the respective entities to be satisfied solely 

from their respective assets, and no officer, Board member, agent, employee, or partner of any 

of said entities shall have any personal obligation, responsibility, or liability for the performance 
of the terms of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 

first set forth above. 

WITNESSED: 

WITNESSED: 

Approved as to Form: 

By: __________ _ 

Its: __________ _ 

6 

SIGNED: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: 
Its: 

By: 
Its: 

SIGNED: 

RED CHICKWEED DEVELOPMENTS 

By: Niccolo G. Mastromatteo 
Its: President 



EXHIBIT A 

(Legal Description) 

Provided Legal Description: 

14-27-306-014, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 HOMESTEAD PARK NO. 1 LOT 186 to 189 INC & E 236 FT OF LOT 10 A.P. NO 105 ADJ 
ON WEST. 
14-27-306-002, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 1 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-003, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 2 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-004, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 3 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-005, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 4 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-006, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 5 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-007, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 6 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-008, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 7 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-009, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 8 EXC W30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 
14-27-306-010, T3N, R10E, SEC 27 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 162 LOT 9 EXC W 30 FT TAKEN FOR RD 11-10-10 CORR 

7 



Exhibit B 



'l-- J11A-?-3~ O o i 
Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 
City of Pontiac 

Office of land Use and Strategic Planning 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Address: 31 N Astor St, Pontiac Ml 48342 Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 14-27-306-014 PF Number: 

Date: 5/4/2023 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Agglicant {glease grint or J¥ge) 

Name Red Chickweed LLC 
Address 735 W Huron St 
City Pontiac 
State Ml 
ZIP Code 48342 
Telephone Main: I Cell··- I Fax: 

- - - -
E-Mail nm@pimperneldevelopments.com 

Project and Pro~rtv Information 

Name of Proposed Development: Longfellow School Redevelopment (name undecided: Pontiac Eastside Long1ellow 2.0) 

The subject property is location at 31 N Astor St on the N / S / E / W side of Martin Luther King Jr Blvd 
between Pike St and Northway St 

The property is zoned: R-1 One Family Dwelling 

Proposed Zoning District: R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: Multifamily, Multifamily Mixed-use 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

T3N, R"10E, SEC 27 HOMESTEAD PARK NO. 1 LOT 186 TO 189 INCL & E 236 FT OF LOT 10 A.P. NO 105 ADJ ON WEST. 



Property Owner Information 

Name Red Chickweed LLC 
Address 36400 Woodward Ave / 735 W Huron St 431549 I 31 n Astor St 
City Bloomfield Hills / Pontiac / Pontiac 
State Ml 
ZIP Code 48304 I 48343 I 48342 
Telephone Main: I Cell: ,,.. .. - . I Fax: 

-

E-Mail nm@pimperneldevelopments.com / niccolo.mastromatteo@gmail.com 

Are you the X Owner ___ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 
PHASE I - MULTIFAMILY MIXED-USE (nonprofit/local business center community hub) 

- 35 (+/-) loft-style apartment rental units 

- 6 (+/-) nonprofit/local busienss center community hub spaces (kitchen, gym, auditorium, boilerhouse) 

PHASE II - MULTIFAMILY 

- 145 (+/-) loft-style apartment rental units 

TOTAL 1&11- 180 (+/-) loft-style apartment rental units and 6 +/· nonprofit/local business center community hub spaces 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
Redevelop longstanding vacant, underutilized, facility property in heart of Eastside Pontiac District 7 Census Tract 1423, Block Group 1 

Provide quality rental housing options at reasonable pricing to current Pontiac Citizens and employees (i.e., future citizen residents) 

Provide City Increased existing and new additional tax revenue, and Citizens Increased resident services, property values, jobs, leveling-up opportunities for PCs, and Eastside hub 

Beautify, add value to, & further revitalize already strong, solid, up-and-coming nelghbortlood, Increasing property values, adding jobs, shepardlng & creating leveling-up opportunities 

CUrrertW\hj se'lefdyi'nltsHg)e&~usefrsprq:>etty; rezorirg ~~lobe,~ aodov.ner~abatytodelver5-ye:Mp20sdavebped wngslde East~~ res1derts,CIXMU\kyme:nber,i,, ~ l;l'idf;ther Ptmal::Ctuet 

Signature of Owner 

State of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

Signature of Applicant 

011 this~ day of ~~ , A.D., 20 'A.~, before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly sworn, slated he/she has read 
ti:¥! foregoing application, by him/her signed, a11d know the co11/e11ts thereof, a11d that the same is true of his/her ow11 knowledge, except as /~tiers 
therein staled lo be 11po11 i11forma/io11 and belief and so as lo those mallers he/she believes ii lo be true. , -~----~~~-------

Notary Public, Oakla11d Co1111ty, Michigan 
MARY CASTRO My Co111111issio11 Expires: Dec I(\ '.l i 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF Ml 
COUNlY OF OAK\..A.ND 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES Dao 19, 2027 
ACTING IN COUNlY OF Oo.kla.nd .. , 



June 29, 2023 
Conditional Rezoning 31 N Astor 

Applicant agrees to the renovation or demolition of the vacant building known as the former 
Longfellow School Facility (the "Building11

) prior to the commencement of any vertical 
construction of any new building, home, or other permanent structure on the rezoned Property, 
The Applicant shall renovate the Building if it is structurally and/or financially feasible, If It Is not 
structurally or financially feasible to renovate the Building, the Applicant shall demolish the 
Building. In the event Applicant renovates the building, upon the issuance of one or more 
certificate of occupancies by the City for at least a minimum of 2,600 square feet of the non
residential space and a minimum of 2,700 square feet of multifamily residential space, 
Additionally, in the event any one or more of the ten (10} vacant land parcels included in this 
conditional rezoning are removed or separated from the project site, it/they shall revert to 
its/their original zoning as it exists on Thursday, July 61 2023, 



Exhibit B 



Article 6 Administration 
Chapter 8 Amendments 

o, Vl 
::, ::r 
a. 0 
Vl ;:+ 

8 a! 
"O <D 
<D -

"2l 

I 
N 

w 

u, 
Vl ,o· 
::, 
u, 

'-I 
C, 

f:g, 
::, 
a: 
g 
u, 

6-30 

D. If the proposed amendment would require a change in the zoning map, the names and addresses of the owners of 
all land within the area to be changed by the proposed amendment. 

E. The alleged error in this ordinance, if any, which would be corrected by the proposed amendment together with a 
detailed explanation of such error in the ordinance, which is alleged, and detailed reasons as to how the proposed 
amendment will correct the same. 

F. The changed or changing conditions, if any, in the area or in the municipality generally, which make the proposed 
amendment reasonably necessary. 

G. All other circumstances, factors and reasons which applicant offers in support of the proposed amendment. 

Section 6.804 Criteria for Amendment of the Official Zoning Map 

In considering any petition for an amendment to the official zoning map, including the designation of street type (A, B, and 
C) and designation of small front setback lots, the Planning Commission and City Council shall consider any of the following 
criteria that apply to the application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision. The_ Planning Commission and 
City Council may also take into account other factors or considerations that are applicable to the application but are not 
listed below. 

A. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If conditions have 
changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent development trends in the area shall be 
considered. 

B. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features with the uses 
permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

C. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the property with 
one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

D. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding uses and zoning in 
terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, 
infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in the requested 
district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic generated by uses 
permitted in the requested zoning district. 

The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and construction 
on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested zoning district. 

If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate from the City's 
perspective than another zoning district. 

If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than amending the list of 
permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 

Section 6.805 Re-application 

Whenever an application for an amendment to this Ordinance has been denied by the City Council, a new application for the 
same amendment shall not be accepted by the Planning Commission for consideration for a period of 180 days, unless the 
Planning Commission determines that one or more of the following conditions has been met: 

City of Pontiac 



#5 
CLOSED 
SESSION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Oakland County, Michigan 

RESOLUTION TO PROCEED IN CLOSED SESSION 
TO CONSIDER THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

RESOLUTION# __ _ 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council for the City of Pontiac, held City Hall, 47450 
Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml on July 25, 2023 at 6:00 p.m., local time. 

The following resolution was offered by Council member _______ and 
supported by Council member: ______ _ 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to consider the purchase or lease of real property; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Open Meetings Act Section 8(d) of MCL 15.268 provides that a 
public body may meet in closed session to consider the purchase or lease of real property up to 
the time an option to purchase or lease such real property is obtained. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council will proceed in Closed Session 
pursuant to Section 8(d) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(d) to consider the purchase or 
lease of real property. 

YEAS: Council Members ________________________ _ 

NAYS: Council Members ______________________ _ 

ABSTAIN: Council Members ______________________ _ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

ClarkHill\18836\468873\27221071 l .vl-7/7/23 

Garland Doyle, Clerk 
City of Pontiac 




